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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF FLORIDA

Case No.

FLORIDA GUN SHOWS, INC.,

A Florida corporation, f/k/a SHOOT

STRAIGHT GUN SHOWS, INC.
Plaintiff,

v,

CITY OF FORT LAUDERDALE,
A Florida Municipality,

Defendant.

VERIFIED COMPLAINT

Plaintiff, FLORIDA GUN SHOW, INC,, a Florida Corporation, complains against THE

CITY OF FT. LAUDERDALE, a Florida municipality, and alleges as follows.
PARTIES

1. Florida Gun Show, Inc. (“FL Gun Show™) is a Florida Corporation having Florida
as both its domicile and principal place of business. Prior to a change of name in 2015, FL. Gun
Show was named SHOOT STRAIGHT GUN SHOWS, INC.

2, The City of Ft. Lauderdale (the “City”) is a Florida municipality, and is a
“person” within the meaning of 42 U.S.C. § 1983.

JURISDICTION & VENUE

3. This Court has subject matter jurisdiction of the federal question claims pursuant

to 28 U.S.C. §§ 1331 and 1343(a)(3). Plaintiff seeks to redress a deprivation of rights guaranteed
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by the First and Fourteenth Amendments to the United States Constitution, Pursuant to 42 U.S.C.
§ 1983.

4. This Court has supplemental jurisdiction pursuant to 28 U.S.C § 1367(a) over
claims that are so related to the claims over which this Court has original jurisdiction that they
form part of the same controversy.

5. The Court has the authority to render declaratory judgments and to issue
permanent injunctive relief pursuant to 28 U.S.C. §§ 2201, 2202 and Rule 65. Fed.R.Civ.P.

6. The Court may award attorneys’ fees pursuant to 42 U.S.C. § 1988.

7. Venue is proper in the Southern District of Florida because the City is located in
the Southern District of Florida and all of the acts complained of herein have occurred in the
Southern District of Florida.

FACTUAL BACKGROUND

8. FL Gun Show is in the business of organizing and promoting gun shows
throughout the State of Florida, including at the War Memorial Auditorium (the “WMA”™),

9. The City owns and operates the WMA. The WMA is an exhibition hall which
first opened its doors in 1950 and was intended to serve as a living memorial to the veterans and
fallen soldiers of World War II.

10.  The City Describes the WMA as a “multi-purpose facility” located in Holiday
Park within the City of Ft. Lauderdale. The City licenses the use of the WMA to exhibitors,
performers and artists, including for “gate” shows like the gun show. In its early days, the WMA
has hosted performances by a wide variety of artists. Currently, the WMA hosts boxing matches,

mixed martial arts competitions, body building competitions, magic shows, LGBT community
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events along with a wide variety of other events and exhibitions including, of course, guns
shows. Indeed, the WMA has hosted multiple gun shows per year for many years.

I1.  To accommodate its exhibitors that promote shows at the WMA year after year on
a repeat basis, the City uses a reservation hold system. Under that system, the City holds or
reserves future dates, in some cases years into the future, for its exhibitors. Those “hold” dates
are reserved for the benefit of the exhibitor and essentially operate as a right of first refusal. For
example, if a new potential exhibitor wants to use the WMA on a date already reserved for
another exhibitor, the reserved date can only be given away if the exhibitor for whom it was
reserved agrees and meets other conditions.

12.  The reservation hold system employed by the City at the WMA benefits all
parties involved. It provides repeat exhibitors with the security of knowing that they have dates
reserved into the future so that they can plan and invest accordingly. The hold system also
provides the City with the security of knowing that its facility is booked with experienced and
knowledgeable repeat exhibitors that have demonstrated their ability to run safe and profitable
shows at the WMA.,

13.  Upon information and belief, the “hold” system is also widely employed by other
fairgrounds and exhibition halls throughout Florida as a standard industry practice. The hold
dates are binding and allow exhibitors the ability to plan for future events.

14.  In or about 2014, FL. Gun Show purchased Suncoast Gun Shows (“Suncoast”).
Prior to its acquisition by FL Gun Show, Suncoast had been in the business of promoting
multiple gun shows per year at the WMA. and had been doing so for many, many years. Upon
purchasing Suncoast, FL. Gun Show acquired the right to promote future gun shows at the WMA

on the dates already reserved by the City for Suncoast.
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15. In or about 2014, the City and FL. Gun Show entered into a so-called license
agr’eement at the WMA for the 2015 calendar year. That agreement set forth the fees, costs and
conditions for FL Gun Show’s use of the WMA in 2015 for the promotion of six “Gun and
knife” shows on dates specifically identified in that agreement. Aside from the gun show dates
identified in FL Gun Show’s 2015 license agreement with the City, FL. Gun Show also had
future “hold” dates for additional gun shows years into the future not only through its purchase
of Suncoast, but on its own behaif as a repeat promotor of gate shows at the WMA in accordance
with WMA’s own practice and procedures.

16. Each year, the parties executed substantially similar license agreements covering
gun show dates at the WMA for 2016, 2017, and 2018, adding a seventh show for years 2017
and 2018. The City has never advised FL Gun Show of any default under any of its license
agreements, or even of a potential default thereunder. Thus, it is the parties’ custom and practice
that, prior to the expiration of whichever current license agreement the parties were operating
under, the parties would execute another license agreement covering the previously agreed-upon
dates for the promotion of the gun show for the following calendar year. As each subsequent
license agreement is executed, the executory “hold” dates for that calendar year move from
“hold” status to coniracted status and became a part of the parties’ new license agreement.
Upon information and belief, the City ulitizes this “hold/reserved dates to contract dates”
procedure for all promoters of gate shows at the WMA, not just for Plaintiff.

17.  Similarly, on or about July 6, 2017, the City and FL. Gun Show entered into yet
another license agreement covering the previously agreed upon hold dates for gun shows for the
2018 calendar year (the License Agreement). A true and correct copy of the License Agreement

is attached hereto as Exhibit “1.” Like the three previous license agreements that came before it,
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the License Agreement sets forth the fees, costs and conditions for FL Gun Show’s use of the
WMA to promote “Gun and knife” shows for the year 2018.

18.  As was the practice and custom of the parties, in addition to the 2018 dates listed
in the License Agreement, FL Gun Show selected and reserved future dates for gun shows at the
WMA though the year 2025.

19.  Given that: (i) the City’s WMA license agreements cover a single calendar year;
(ii) that it has been the parties’ course of conduct to execute new license agreement year after
year and (iii) that FL. Gun Show has valid specific “hold dates” for gun shows though at least
2025, FL Gun Show has an expectation and right to receive a license agreement covering the
2019 gun show dates it already has on hold for 2019 and so forth for every subsequent year for
which dates are already reserved.

20. Pursuant to the License Agreement and the ones that preceded it, to date, FI. Gun
Show has promoted approximately twenty-four gun shows at the WMA over 4 years. For each
of those shows, FL. Gun Show has met all of its financial commitments under the various license
agreements and has also complied with every other condition imposed by those agreements
concerning insurance, police presence, parking, licensing, permitting, gun safety and many other
topics. All of the shows promoted by FL Gun Show at the WMA have been successes; all have
run smoothly, safely and without incident; and literally thousands of visitors attend each of FL.
Gun Show’s gun shows.

21.  Despite FL Gun Show’s history of promoting successful and safe gun shows at
the WMA for many years, as a result of the tragic shooting deaths of a number of Broward
County students at the hands of a criminal, the political climate in Broward County in 2018 has

become very hostile towards gun shows and gun rights in general.
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22, During a City commission meeting held on March 20, 2018, City Commissioners
turned their attention to the issue of gun shows at the WMA. At that meeting, the City’s recently
elected Mayor, Mr. Dean Trantalis and several Commissioners expressed their view that it was
time for the City to stop allowing gun shows at the WMA. Excerpts from that meeting include:

“[1]t seems o me that we have -- we have a situation that the community has — continues

to speak out against having the gun show at War Memorial. I'm hopeful that this

commission will put on the record its opinion that we should not continue this gun show

after the license agreement expires.”

Mayor Trantalis: Transcription of Commission Meeting, pg. 3, lines 19-25, attached
hereto as Exhibit “2.”

“I do believe it was the opinion of the past commission to continue the gun show and to
continue the license as-is, but now that we have a new commission, 1 think we have a
different philosophy.

Mayor Trantalis: Transcription of Commission Meeting, pg. 8, line 24, through pg. 9, line
2.

“We can have an intelligent discussion, which we all know what our hearts want and
what we’re trying to do to protect our community and our kids based on the recent
activity in Coral Springs. I think we all are very, very concerned about a gun show being
in our park. ...”

Commissioner McKinzie: Transcription of Comnmission Meeting, pg. 10, lines 7-13.

“I guess the sense of the commission is how — what opportunity do we have to terminate
this license agreement so that we no longer have to host this at War Memorial
Auditorium.

Mayor Trantalis: Transcription of Commission Meeting, pg. 11, lines 18-21.

23.  The City’s legal staff was asked to look into whether there were any grounds for

the early termination of the License Agreement and a special meeting was scheduled to take
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place the following month to debate the subject. That follow up meeting took place on April 3,
2018.

24.  Although no official decision was announced at the April 3, 2018 public meeting,
the comments made by the Mayor and the commissioners indicated that while the City might not
go so far as to terminate the License Agreement early out of concern that doing so might lead to
litigation, the City was unlikely to offer FL. Gun Show a new License Agreement for 2019 and
would not be honoring FL Gun Show’s future hold dates. By letter dated August 31, 2018,
without additional explanation or the identification of any cause, the City informed FL Gun
Show that it would not be entering into a 2019 license agreement with it and that FL. Gun Show
would not be allowed to promote Gun Shows at the WMA beyond those identified in the License
Agreement. A true and correct copy of the August 31, 2018 letter is attached hereto as Exhibit
“3.” The City has refused to renew FL Gun Show’s License Agreement even though the City
has committed itself to hold/reserve dates for FL. Gun Show through at least 2025.

25.  As a political subdivision of the State of Florida, organized and operating under
the laws of the State of Florida, the City and its officials were, and are, acting under color of state
law in refusing to rent or license its publicly-owned facility to a lawful and legitimate business.

26. The City’s refusal to rent its publicly-owned facility to a lawful and legitimate
business is a violation of FI. Gun Show’s constitutional right to engage in commercial speech
and is violative of FL. Gun Show’s right to equal protection under the law.

FIRST CAUSE OF ACTION

FOR VIOLATION OF THE RIGHT TO FREE SPEECH UNDER THE UNITED
STATES CONSTITUTION

27.  Plaintiff incorporates by reference paragraphs 1 though 26 of this Complaint as

though fully set forth herein in their entirety.
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28.  Through its promoted shows at the WMA, FL Gun Show seeks to propose a
commercial transaction that is not false, deceptive or misleading.

29, FL Gun Show is attempting to engage is protected commercial speech.

30.  The City’s refusal to rent its publicly-owned facility to a legal and legitimate
business does not advance any substantial or compelling state interest and subjects FL. Gun Show
to the deprivation of free speech rights secured by the First Amendment to the United States
Constitution,

3l The deprivation of FL Gun Show’s free speech rights is subject to action pursuant
to 42 U.S.C. § 1983,

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff respectfully requests the following relief:

a. A declaration that Defendant’s actions in refusing to rent its publicly-
owned facility to Plaintiff violate the First Amendment to the United
States Constitution by infringing upon Plaintiff’s right to engage in
commercial speech;

b. An order compelling the Defendant to allow Plaintiff to promote its gun
shows at the Defendant’s facility on the specific dates promised to it;

c. Issue the requested injunctive relief without a condition of bond or other
security being required of the Plaintiff;

d. That this Court award Plaintiff its costs and expenses, including its
attorneys’ fees, pursuant to 42 U.S.C. § 1988; and

e. Such other relief as the Court deems just and equitable.
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SECOND CAUSE OF ACTION

FOR VIOLATION OF THE RIGHT TO EQUAL PROTECTION UNDER THE LAW
UNDER THE UNITED STATES CONSTITUTION

32, Plaintiff incorporates by reference paragraphs 1 through 26 of this Complaint as if
fully set forth herein in their entirety.
33. The Fourteenth Amendment to the United States Constitution provides that no
state shall deny any person the equal protection of the laws.
34.  Although FL Gun Show runs a legal and legitimate business and although the
WMA is suitable for the purpose of hosting gun shows, the City refuses to allow FL Gun Show
to use the WMA for the promotion of its gun shows.
35.  The City’s refusal to permit FL Gun Show to use the WMA for its promoted guns
shows does not further any substantial or compelling state interest.
36. The City’s refusal to do business with FL. Gun Show while continuing to license
its publicly-owned facility to other similarly situated legal and legitimate businesses is a
violation of FL Gun Show’s right to equal protection under the law.
37.  The violation of Plaintiff’s right to equal protection under the law is subject to
action pursuant to 42 U.S.C § 1983.
WHEREFORE, Plaintiff respectfully requests the following relief:
a. A declaration that Defendant’s actions in refusing to rent its publicly-
owned facility to Plaintiff viclate the Fourteenth Amendment to the United
States Constitution by infringing upon Plaintiff’s right to equal protection
under the law;
b. An order compelling the Defendant to allow Plaintiff to promote its gun

shows at the Defendant’s facility on the specific dates promised to it;
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¢. Issue the requested injunctive relief without a2 condition of bond or other
security being required of the Plaintiff;

d. That this Court award Plaintiff its costs and expenses, including its
attormeys’ fees, pursuant to 42 U.S.C. § 1988; and

e. Such other relief as the Court deems just and equitable.

THIRD CAUSE OF ACTION

VIOLATION OF FLORIDA STATUTE § 790.33 (STATE LAW CLAIM)’

38.  Plaintiff incorporates by reference paragraphs 1 through 26 of this Complaint as if
fully set forth herein in their entirety.

39. By adopting and enforcing an anti-gun show policy at its publicly-owned facility,
the City is regulating the purchase, sale, transfer and ownership of firearms and ammunition in
violation of Florida Statute § 790.33.

40. FL Gun Show has been injured by the City’s actions in violation of Florida
Statute § 790.33, which provides specifically in the language of the statute for injunctive relief.

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff respectfully requests the following relief:

a. A declaration that Defendant’s actions in refusing to rent its publicly-
owned facility to Plaintiff violates Florida Statute §790.33;

b. An order compelling the Defendant to allow Plaintiff to promote its gun
shows at the Defendant’s facility on the specific dates promised to it
pursuant to Florida Statute § 790.33(3)(b);

c. That this Court award Plaintiff its actual damages pursuant to F1. Stat.

§790.33(3)();

! Plaintiff reserves the right to amend the instant complaint to add any individual(s) who may be subject to penalties
under Fl, Stat §790.33(3)Xa).

10
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d. That this Court award Plaintiff its costs and expenses, including its
attorneys’ fees, pursuant to FIL Stat. $790.33)(3)(D); and
e. That the Court grant such other reliel as the Court deems just and
equitable under the circumstances
Dated: September 727 . 2018.
Respecifully Submitted,
WOODBURY, SANTIAGO & CORREOSO, P.A.
Counsel for Plaintiff
9100 S. Dadeland Blvd., Suite 1702
Miami, FI. 331536
Telephone (305) 670-9380
By: _ /s/ Michael P Woodbury

Michael P. Woodbury (FI3N 983690)
Robert P. Santiago {(FBN 62650)

VERIFICATION

I SWEAR under penalty of perjury that the factual aliegations contained in this Verified
Complaint are true and correct to the best of my personal knowledge, except where otherwise

indicated.

Khaled Akawwi
President. Florida Gun Shows, Inc.
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EXHIBIT “1»
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CIiTY OF FORT LAUDERDALE

AL ABBIT ﬂi

LICENSE AGREEMENT, WAR MEMOIIAL AUMTORIUM

THIS AGREEMENT, mude and entered jato his 6™ day or Jl LY 2017 is by and
hepween the Ciiy o Fort Pauderlale. a Florida municipalit . (Livensoe™ or ¢ iy and

Fogal Name: FLOREDA GEN SHOWS, INC (“Ficomee™)

Aehilegns: L3409 5 ORANGE BLOSSOM TRALL
APOPKA,FL 32103

Represonatine: MR KHALED AKKAW]

Plcne: 07 LE0-6870 Fiess

Faail: ke resgan,com

WIEINESSNH:

WEHLREAN, e Cite vwns amd operates the War Memerial Audibriuns £ WSTA™L
focated an 800 N R Sueet, Fost Fanderdale, Flarido, 33364 and

WHEREAS the Livemses soudd lhe o prosent s GUN AND KNIFE SHOW an the War
Memarab Saditosbue, and the Livenisee having doby determined the suilability of WAL for suid

(SR &1

lo considurion of te mutuasd pronstses et forth erein aid other pood g vahiable
considertion. the Licensor iwnd the Livensee herehy agrve s fidiu s

I Fhe Licemaor dovs hereby grant w the Licensee o Beense o ase the W ar Memoriul
Auditarium ot the puipose of preseting 4 GUN AN KNIFE SHOW il for o other
purpose whatsoevor, Perfonmances on SEF ENHIBIT 2. Building aeeess comnencing it SEE
FXHIBET Y and tormiiting it SEE EXHHIBIT 2

2 Fhe Livenses shadl pas the Biceosor a fivense fog of THERTY JFHOLSAND
TWO HENDRED FORTY DOLLARS (S30.240. By minimuat or XA N Cn of the gross
seevips, eanclading sales g i0om in excess ol e stted minimun Heetise foe, whichever i

plis expenses When there is @ matinee performanve whe: ]uluf s e ~aine das s an

drunler,
wrening performaney. e sininum beerse e shall be smercosed by NAA CSN/A L Rehearsals
ert the day of performance or othersase shall e an oxperise of the Licetee doostoal NJA

) NG A per perlormance. phay pesonnel requirad. Rebearsals are considerned Slinge Unfe
e T presenee of more thim seveniz<ive spectistors al g sohearsid w i generine o vharse o

A addditional performuance.

RS Phe Ficenser agrees te fomish waler uul chectrical service for normal use. but am
ol cither i eveess of whigt is reasonuble in he © W T sale wpinion. s over aed absas o what is
inchuded in ihe ticomse fee amd s by paid for by the [ icesee sithin fotreen dass foliowing
Picemmet™s dispaich af an inviice tieretir o the Licenser,  n additon, Livensee ahall pas
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Licensor for any help provided by the auditoriym HuHRIgement it For the wse of specis
wuipment in gecordanee wils thw labor and cyuipment charpes set furth i Exhibit 1 which is
attuched hereta ppd incorponed hurein, within tourieen dayy tollowsing Licenser's dispuich of
ar inveice therefor o e Licensee

4. The tivensor reserves the right exclusively 1o operate ali food amd drink
veneessions within and withour the wally of the Auditurium, {he Licensee shidl ensure that na
exhibitor. sublicensee or puesen shadl offer for sahe, Bive away. or otherw jse dispose, ar
desiribaire, any drink. jev Creant candy, ur fiux] ol any type. amount. L. o msture. withou
Peor approval by Licensor,

i Licensee agrees 1o hine one £y Bifteen (13 minue inwrnission. or (wo (3) en
HHh minuw intermissions for cach stage perlurmane., il any.

0. THIS AGREEMENT 18 MADE AND ENTERED INTO UPONTHE
FOLLOWING EXPRESS COVENANTS AND CONDITIONS:

ab Tivensee shatl pay City of Fort T aderdale business tax. which i~ presenthy $157 30 per
ST

by Licensey shall ensure thal af gun vendurs are duly feensed Tnsirm deaders,

e Licensee shadt ensure that « vendrs perlirm bachground checks in cotmnection with all gun
sates pussuau o applicable Florida and federal faw

IV Purking for Gun Show attendees <hafl be limited 1o dusiynated War Momeria)
Audiwehin parking secas,

w1 Licensee shl arrange 4l pay (o pedice detail. wiich shagl COUMSt oF u miginum ol 5
Feserve officers within WEA e zenwral security, two ofticers fo e WAL parking
Areass woadteers withis WAL 1y policing of pricate VRPN wtles, aind o
SHPCEY s

B e number afrequired nlicers on detail skl be rewaiessed as combitieas merit on “
sHow 10 sl basds, aind i stbject o change, i the Livensor « sole diseretion.

wr bicensee shall ensure thay 4l seapons citering WAL o5 om the premises aof T el iday
Fark are encased in g coreesponding soft or hurd case or holster

b Fieensee shall ensure thint there in a dosigmined cheek-in i i pection Lible in the WAL
fobby whure Ticetaee shall dhect, iorpeel. secure, and disuble with w fre givs. all
fircarms. and shull cheek. inspect and seeure any other Waupos. Hi atendees wish o
bring it the Gun Show. | teensee shalf nod allos im i Coun Show any firearms or
Hther sestpons that we ot so sectred aml disubhed.

1 Ay anendes not uhloading firearms or who has e Jive smmusition shall have sopd
Aminibon confiseated and ey mity nst be bl ed fs (i wn show it the Jiscictimg
ab the Cis of Tont Laderdae pebice arficer on detail,

T M ocupons shalb be inspecied by a Floridi Gun St sttt memibey, s dwll hye
U sed By o e of Bt | audendale palice oMicer on deail, Only Upan compictiog ol
1Rt inzpection, and widh the fircarnes ) secnred and disabbod, and ans ather weupon daly
wanred, ~haf { ivensee alfow an Aemdue to enter the Gan Show wirh 5 liresirns or uthiey

WO,
R icensee shal pot allow A0y L Show altendey (o carty mere than twa Bresems tnue the

WAL
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[F 1 Giun Show artendee w ishes [ have work or repairs perlirmed an g weupon ang the
vendor neads to remoy ¢ e Seenring wire tie. Licensec shyH ensure that the vendor
Feapplics e wire te and seeures the w vapon mrade immediatety upon completion af the
repRir

7. fovordder 1o detininely reserve the speetfic dates hevefpaluve <o forh, | ivensey
ISt exeeute thix vomacs in duplicare and return hath execued copics to Livenser for offigial
sihasture of the ©icenser, logether with the required lioense fee within FOURT DAYS (14;
i s e ditie of this contract, Buposit Reguired: S1785.00. Al license foes are Now-
Rettmndabic, exeept in the euse ofu Foree Mudeure or Licensor's wieured miateriad defaalt,

8 The Ticensee shall obtain und pay Tor any leense required for st music and adher
rertuenance riglis as imposed hy ASCAR BMIL s any and all ather similar ficensosy during
Livenaee's wse of the Licemsors feilities. The Ficensee shall geoteet anal defend at Licensee's
Fxpenrse. counsel being subjeet o the Cite s appreval. amd indemnify and hold harmdess the
Licensor frem and apaina any and al losses, penalties. fines, danmtges, setifements, pusdgmynts,
cltimia, costy, charges, toyaltics, expenses. or fighilities, inchuding any avard ol atomey Tees and
#0ansand of sosts, i connection with ar aristug dircetly or indireetly ont af am inlringement or
allepation or ifringement of am music rights. perlisrmance righss, wopvrichl, or any other
itefleetiad PRty aht i conneetion with the Licensee™s cuent,

i Al Trekes Salos’Adnussion Fees on the day ol the Performancetsy shall b aold b
e icensor via WA boy oflice MafE AN priced tickels und adnission foes shall inclile a
Facthy Fee o' S 200 cach, which shall be paid w the Licensor. Eicensee shall ah ertise uit tichel
Prices and admission fees inclusive of WAL Facility Tees, WMA shail he entithed to wenny-
four (24) complimentary tehets Perevent o perlomunce. WMA reserves the right.
gments saole diseretion, w witlilold seals from public sale in ader o spisiy ans patron
and o cyuipment relocation necds. The Licensee shall Tursish the {icensor 1 writing full and
vomplel: informaion concerning the tvpes and numbers of all tickets sali, iadhance sales amd
day of event sales) ad the extublashed tichet prices of such tickets. and <hull rntsh the Licensor
with copres of maiosts and other reponts furnished by Liceesee (0 the tnternal Revenue
Serviee, all us prompy as mas he possible. Complimensary, zero price. lickets shall be fimiwed
e 0% of the cnline ticket manifost wed e subject o approval by the WAL mamager e
Licensor retsms the vight oy mahe detenmination of ticker reliods for vanse. i heeping with e
Liounsorts mticy o retaining pablic Bt This shudl inclade. but mor be tnited s wals Blocked
by equipment when ewchange for comparshle toention i ol possible. filure of projection
SQRIPIIenL Laung 1o et 1o how, e 1o perform within reaspnable e eof schedele pro idid by

RSN

breenaee shall eaedistvely sdize WAL S somputerbad Hekeiing systems o the wale af ail
ket whsilier vied i, phone centers. mterned, or mobite desices, (e distribation or wale of
tschets and admission fies through amy other chimnels. inclusding diwount websites, social awdia
SO Or | eeimaen s offees 1y prohibited withind the vaprese, weitten comvers of the Licensor.
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. Any sum owed the Licensor by ihe Ficerser lor the use of WALY, and the cost off
AN ecommodations, sersices or materials shal be deducted From the bos office reevipis of

[ nse.

Floo As a condition precedent to the effectiveness of this Agrcement and prior -t cach
veent ieensee shall provide to the Licensor o cenificate of commcrcind general liuhility
isurancy with an AN Best™s A- rted or better insurapey compzuny atthorized Lo issue insuranee
policies inthe Stae of Florida, subject o approsal by the Licensor's rish ML, in e amoun
ot dess than $LOGLO00 combined single limit for bodily injury and propeny damage. acluding
cOverage  for premisesoperstions, producis complets]  operations,  comractul liability.
independent coatractors, and luahitin urising oul ol the indemnification provision. As a condition
prveedint s the elfectiveress of this Agreement and prior o exch esvent, {ieensee shall provide
fa the Bicensar g eontifieaie of business auto liability insurance with an AM Best's A~ rited or
briter insurance company uuthorifod 1o bsue instrmey policies i the St of Florida, subject 1o
approvsl by the Licensors sk manager, inan amount not less Uian 31000000 PUF CCURFCIICS
wombined sangle it for bedily injury and property damage. ineluding coveragy i owned
auties gl other vehicles, hired atos and other vehicles, heavy cquipment. nen-owned autos and
other veliiches. The commereial general labilin poliey shall mane e Uiy of Font aderdale, o
Florida munteipatity, < an odditional insured. In addition, s a conditipn precedunt to the
eltvetivoness of this Agreement and prior s each even, Liceusee shall provide 1o the §icensor o
ceitilicyte of sworkers” compension insiamee. including emploser's lizbiling . with an AM Best's
Veorittad G better insicsce compans authesized g dssue inspratee pulicies i the State of
Plowida. subject wr approval by the Dicensor's rish manager, with lisits sol fess than $ 100,100
Per aecidont. 3M0000 disee policy itk snd ST00.000 discise fuach vinplisveey in
compliasee with alf state and federal kavws Licensee shaf] provide w the Livensor at lead thirsy
E30 day s sriteen ntee T regdsterad or cortilTad madt, returs receipt regquested. adhdressed to the
WATA wanager, prior o casceilution or modilication of ans toguired insucmee. Cly reseoes
e reght 1o adjust die inviranes coterags seguirements. depending upon the risk of Tass wrd

exposure b fuhili.

AN requived insurance policies shall cover all shuw set-up, move-in ond move-ont
tharyy

P2 Nat heer than seven (71 dass betore the st diny of the evert the |ivensee shatl
furnish the Dicessor st of the perfirmers, gips andor actors Bt widh by esing WALA i ans

st theatrical e coneent performsance,

b3 M Dicensee shall reimburse e Fieensor alt reusonablc additionst SXPUTses
incurrcd by e Dicenser tor amd on bebalt of e Licemsecs cveni. Ser jees amd prsonaed
roeitngd and expenses facarred by WMV shal! be Bmdted o diose which cre. in the Licensor <
opirion essential. Penelicial aad narmatly cequired of a licensee during i ovcupaney ol the
Auduorivm, AR charges will be hemizod o the | icensor's final siatenient when presenicd Lo
the Tieessee tor pavment, Livensor shalt provide Dnal statersent and condac the linal
seftlement with Ligensee the 1ist busioess day following the closing perlivnumes day of the
shetin. Al servives are subjeer keosixopereent Floridhy sifes tan, saless Desser is ey exempt

prarsit e Flovida e
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14 Any and all riders auached w this Agreement become part of this Agrevment, with
the sumu foree aml effect s though writien into the body thereol,

P30 Fhe Licensee shalt comply with all Lews oF the §nited States, the aws of the Stie ol
Floridi inclading but net linvited W the Florida Butlding Cosbe nd 1he Florida Fire Prevention
Code, ali wrdinances of the Uity of Fart Fauderdale. and alt rules and resprirenments al the Police
and Fire Departments and other muasicipal authorities of the Ciny of Port Fawderdate, and shall
aci sdos e alline o be done anything on said premises durtng (he 1erm of this License
Agreement in viekidien of any such fiss, osdinasees. rules or requirements. and if the atiention
of said Lieensee is calied 1o any such vielagion on the pas of said 1icenser. ot of auy persen
emplosad by or admited wothe said premises by said Licensee, sueh Licensce shadl immedialy
desist from and correct the vielation, Licensee shalf obiain and puy fur all necessdany pormits e
Hocises, Licensee shall abide by all rufes und regudintions promgated by e Licensar in reied
o the wse ol the Wi Memorial Audiwerium andior Hiliday Park,

Lo, Ticensor shall setain the right to cuase G intersuption of any performange, o ovent,
amld Bkowize o couse the wrmination of such perinsmamee, of evenl when e judgmem ol
WAL Maigement, such serion is secessary Dy the imterests of public safety. Showld it beeonn
nevessiry. i the judgmant off WMA Manggement. o evacaate the premises becanse of an
ctiergeney. or for ather reisons of public salety, the Licensee shall setaiin use of the prersises for
sutficient et yomplete prosentstion of its activits without additional charae providing such
tme dovs net fntertere with apotber leersee's use of the builifiog.  [5 # i not possible 1o
somiplete prexentition of the activity, the livense fee shall be foridited. provsted. o adiusted al
the diseretion of the Livensor based upost the <flumtion: acd the Licensee herebs wabies am
shim fer dasages oF compensation from the Licensor. Ficensor peserves e tight o mabe such
ATRUERCCINE s are deemeid pedessary at uns (ime in e interest of public ssfen . Licenses
agrees tial o will eooperite with the delivery of such sonouncements lor pablic saiely, inchixding
Bt ot Hited s Smouneeinienits o feguine matiors e return o theit seats of W enter of e ¢ the

[‘TC”U"L'\

PR Should the Licemser canved the event covered under this Agroemient. and i the cvent
Hat the WAL it be licensed atherwise on that date, the deposit amaunt bl B forfiited by
the ficenses and the amount applicd w the il basiv loas fee lall be payabic by the | iconsee
te the Livensor as hyuidored damages, not as pemahty, and Licensee agrees also w pas ans other
wxpenses incrred By rhe Biecensor in conneetion with tie event covered he the Agrevinent.

I8 The Licensor reserves the right oo aneed this Agreoment for pood caose. In e
Svant i Lwetisor evercizes its cight i shall refund 1o the Licensee any basic license fee paid e

the 1 ivensor.

B should the Licensee delaett in the performance o i ol e wemes or vondition. of
s Agreoment the ivemsor at i oplion may weeminate the s and e Dicensee shall be
Faeble for she Bl wuount of the basde lioense fee provided fise herein, less the Buense lees

reveived from sthers fur nse of e premises at the tme o imes specilicd in tis Sereenient
i _
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Ay deposit made by the Licensee 1o the Licensor, husvever, shudl, upin dhelantt, be retiined by
the Licensor for figuiddated dumages us an oflset 1o expenses incarred. aond not s g penalty.

20 The Lieense shalt not injure. cor mar. nor in any marmer defiee the WA, and
shadl ot cause we pernit o be driven suils, books. tacks or serews into my part of suid premises,
aned will not make. nor aflow o be made any alterations of any kind therein,

21 Inthe cvent the premises or any porton of the WAA oF its equipment, during the
term of this License Agreemen is darmiged by die at. default, or mepligence of the Licensee or
v of the Licenser's wgents. employees. subeontriciors, exhibilors, attendues or guests, Licenses
shutl promptly par o Licensor such sum as shall be necessary 1o restore sail premises to their
sotidizion st the tine of the commenvement of this License Ageeeniens,

an Bieensee athorisags Licensor 1o arrnge Tor and have on duty at all negessary tmes
sutficiont pulice fwee. as determined hy i, o maintiin order and profeet porsears uid
property. with the express understanding that Licensee, in final sellletuent. Sl foe such
servives of sch palice fivee | pon request from Licensor, Licensee shall nmediuels rownsion
Sroremese from the Bvest amy of R vaplosees or personnel. incfuding B SUPCIVESON
personnet. whe in the sobe judgment of Licensor, engage in improper cosduct or are por
otfers e, i e easonsble judument of | censor. suitable o aceeptable W perfomm their duties
wrans Lska assivhed W othent Dicensee and jrs emphavees. personned and agens shali cunply
with and vonform o dt rules, regultions and dircetives issued by Licensor or its desiznees from
me ter time,

23 The Licensow will purmait no chuiz, movable seat. or other ohstruction, w be or
i in the g < and will eep said patsnazewiny < clear gl toes, Phe Dicensee Sbald
Bot pernnt the cetrance doors o be achaed during amy peeiod when the public s affoned im
Auditorim,

3E 0 The Ficenser shall mu et or exhibit, sor allow 1 be posted or exhibited, siis,
v ertisements, ~howbills, liographa, posters ar cards of sny description. inside or in front, or
it any purt o sank bailding, exeept upon the regular billhosrds provided and o authorized by the
Licetwar therclor. and it use. post ar exhibil unly such signs, adyertisaments, shisebills,
frthographs, posters or vards upsn sakh bilthanrds s relate w0 the performance o oxfilit it s
the subjeer af this License Agreement. Funther, Licensee shall not prast iy signio viekadon of
Ao the €505 ardinanees, Piosting of siers in viekiaon ol sy of the Cite's ordinemees s
At i immediay ermimition of this Agrevment and of the o ent by i | wensee shail e

iven rensonahle opportunity b remehy s suchy delault ar breach

2 Hie Trwensee shall oot adim wo the WALY o larger numiber o] perons than the ke
Capacity thareot will accommodate or can sifely ar freely nenve sbour e said Heensed ares, and
the devision of the WALY manazcmem in this reapest shalt be final. Phis provisien applivs o BTN

Bpeevent show ar pertormumee

2 the Dicensor shall have the ol right o colleet and have custody of anticies telt i
the building by persons attending sy performance. exbikition or citeriament given ar held
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the WMAL and 1he Licensee, or #y persons in Licensecs employ. shatl nor collecl nor intertere
with the collevion or custoddy of such arieles. Notwithstanding the Rrregoing. icensor shall
Aty Licensee of any equipment o anicles advertent!y fefv m the Liciliny by Licenses and
pronvide iecnsee with a reasorinhle OPPOTREL O remove same petor i removal or disposal by
[ reensor,

27 the Livensor reserves the right 10 emose from the building .nd nr the appurtenani
arounds all Livenscee's elleers remaining in the building and or the appurtenant grinds wlier
lermaition time specilicd ar the expense of Licvasee and 1o charee Licensee 10 e s for
the ke adter the lermimation sty specificd hercin e any propenty remlising in the building
and-or on the appurienant grownds, provided however, in the event of o Foree Muajeure, ficenses
shall bave s eeasamable perisd of Gime i o U Iense.

2. The anilonzad representatives of the 1icensor may enter the WAL builkling and «ll
ot appurteninat grobids and premises. inchaling ans oulside structure, ent. or fixture, at wn
i,

S Absent the express. writen apprival ol the Clly of Fork Easderdale §ire Masht,
Licensee <l nol erect or OPETAtC uly engine, motor or machinery oo the prerses, shall o use
Sk buming uids, conphene. kesosene, naphtha, sobvens ar gasoline e mechamioal or ot
purpose. and bl s use ans asent ether than elevtricity Tor iumenaiing the premises, |

Ficensos shall deedn the fuel tanks ot any and Al squipmen . sutomohiies, hoats or other
Bped of displan wherein a fuel wk is atmched, inchuding auvilon fuel wwks and ouhord
mOLots prior tobringing any of such equipment into e WAL Mo tpe o ek shall be placed
e fuel fanks it any and all cquipment, sutomebide, boats o ather topes o display T

Fewis plaged outside 1he Fuileling

Licensew aathorices Tieensar 1o amangs for and bine on duly ab wll secessans imes
sufticient Fire-Resone Depariment personnel. as determined by (i, w protevt persons and
property - with e cypress understnding that Eicensee, in i setibement. shal] pay fir waench

services o such Fire Deparnment personmel.

Mo many degal aclion 1w colleos 4y deus chrges or eapenses due from 1 ieensee
beretnder, the 1o agrves 1o pay Lo Licensor Licensors resonable sttomes Fees wind cosga,

S e Eicensee <hall no assign irmnster or stehlivense this bioense Agrecient or mn
prant thereet. e suller e penmit ans wse ol il premuses othee than as herein specitied. sor

subdeense tive pramises or ary parttherent. without the prive wriiten consent ot the |iconsor,

il inte said building, or ground< withou

P Nu Bevses o ather aninals <halt be hrog
the exproes conaent of ©icenser, and then under such regublations s niay be made by the

Licensor
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and‘or the ramber of individuals that cin satily moye ahout in said Beensed ros, I'he decision
ol the Lreensor in this respect shall be fingl.

AR deerrathve maerial st by fame-prool berore the same wili be allowed in the
buifding,

350 After unpacking sl boxes, canons, ce, Liconsee shall place all lovse packing
el puper. cle. i hoxes or other containers, and Ficensee shall move sueh boses and
coainers i sale phiee Jor stomge. as the Lisensor dincts.,

3o Inthe evemt the said faciling. or any par thereof, is destroy e e fire or any other
s ar iy otlier casuadty or anlireseen oecurrenee shall reeder the [UHImwst of (s
bicense Agreement by the Licensor impuossible (“Foree Majeore®), then and theretupon his
License Agreement shall eoninate. and the Livensee shali pay the pro et portion of the Heense

bee for use of said premises 63 the tme of such wermination, plus amy odher documented out of

POCKOE expenses incurrad hy Licensor which are due Lieensor under Seetion 13 abes e, HINF ANy
armoants shich are due o] icensir in aecoedanee witie Sections 3 il 6 above fafier takig o
dcvountans rebwnds which niny be doei.

370 Hhe Licensor shiadl ot he responsible for any dimage oe infury that nan happen o
M Tivensed, ar s the |icensee's agents. serviigs, emplosees, avtors, vesdors, of pepery from
Wy catese whatsoever, priog. during e subsequen o the perknd coverad by this Liconsw
Agrecnrenn, wmd the Livensee ereby refenses the Livensor from and agrees toidemandy he
Licunsor against claims for such foss, damage urinjurs

Phe Liceosee shall protect wad defend at the Liconsee's expere. cotel being
subleet ot Licensors approval. indermnify and bold farnitess the Diconses and the
Pivensor's officers. emplorees, valunieors, s agentts Froa and sgainst tosses, penaltics, Gnes.
damages, settlements. Judgmene claima, cists, charges, expenses, or liabilitics, inchuding i
aasrd o atoriey Tees und amm avard of costs, i0 connection with or arisieg directly e indizeols
sut ol the Teensed's use of tie War Momorial Auditorimm arl appurterant enaauds, or ia
connection with or ansing direaty or indirectls our of amy aet ar pmission of the Eivelsee or ol
any oflicer. emplasee. spent, invitee, exhibitor, sabeontracior. or ashlicensee of te Livensey

i The Licensee <half ensure i salficient e, emergeney predical services, md
prtive personel, and parking stendsats ane on duaty the entire nambher oF day s e cvent i open
trthe publicc The poliee and parking attendints ase engaged and seheduled by e §ivensor,

Pt e ey pense thereot is an obBygation of the § ieensee il paricd Bor by the § icepse

i Phe decensee shall cusure thin so car or track nemaia on the Ao orouids
frsiinnd adjecem to the huildisg, other than the tme reguiread Lo andead i oad, W ehicles
st be feahesd b the Gditriany'- paarhing by

i b dhe ovemt the Licensee sishes te e the service of ane or mare e
iz A

b said service shall be areanged by e | icensor a paad For b the |icansee B the

The Licensee agrees that at no time will the tichel sales exeed the seating capavily

Page 20 of 52
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Livermsor it final seutlement. This security guard shall be for foside andfor outside use. Naid
seeurity guard shall be og duty From ar loast (0:00 pos untit $:00 am sluring the Tl perjod of
time disphays. exhikits, merchandise, ot arc on the grounds. Any additional jndoor SOCUrity
guard. if peeded. shall be selected by the Licensor, Said indour seeurits guard shall o
b allesed during hisher scheduled shift wo 1 ave the building 1o inspect exhibits which ny be
utt the grousds ol the Awlitorium, ke or she st remnim in the huikling o0 all times, ory
CH1or 10 proteet die dlisplay s, exhibits, merchandise, ete. shall be made by the suid security guand,
Fhe Cits shall aot be Beld ligble for Toss by theli, damage or disappearance il display s, exhihins,
merchandise, ete. from the building and‘or grounds. except 1o the cxeent that such fuss, theit or
damige is caused By the sweligent or wrongful act v omission of any of Licensor's etnphoy ecs
while acting within the seope of their employment anil subjeet v the limitations of Section
TO8IR Flarids Statutes 130731, Aty b amended or sevised Hrom time w fime,

L The Bicensee shudl require abl exhibitors and sublicensees 1o by polscthylene. no
s tien 6 il thick. on the foor of the Auditorivm (hoetfis priee lo the istllation or e
Riviny of any buifding Blocka. grass. conerete. fenees. or iy material requiring cement. mortar,
sl ow it e Dicensee shall ensure that no mails e driven into iy portion of the i,
wall<ar woodwisl of the Aaditorin,

420 e ase of apen clip sochets, Liex, bamp ened wiee, duplex o triples, stachmen
Pl i exhibiss is prohibied. Ay and all electrivat cords stall be of e three wire wroundud

Iy,
3 A aisle wiidths mos comply with Fire Marshal orders o segokuions,

EE Qtimiiliad coprosematives of e Licuimee shall be on duts i the Lobby ol the
Auditorium cne (1 hour prive w e epening oF the dones for admittance of the general public,
Phe Faa mside Auditorium lobby duvors, or any other ¢t sl not be ocked of wtherwise
Fastened during e o of the Licensee's SO eNeept for seeitrity rensors and thea only By
authorized WAL snplosves.

A3 Phis Livense vereement shall b governed by the ks of the State of o,
Vomue Jor iy daw it by cilher ety rgemnst the other pary . or alberwise ansu om of this
Awgrcement, and lor any wther legal pra weeding, shall he o Browand Comnty, Floridu, or i the
evait ot federal furisdivien. i ke Southern District o Fiorida,

60 ivemsee shidl nel discrimimge ay ol s etisites welated o s | cense
BNl agtainet R pecson e e basis ol fce, color. gender. national eigin, religion, ape,

eahiliny or marinad status,

AT hrthe cuent ane parsgrapl section, senteace. o chiuse of tis Liget Agreemment is
il by g court oF competent jurisdiction 1o be s fid, egalor snentoreeabiie. seoh hoiding
shull ner et the remsatinder of this | ivense Mareemenn. which shall remain i el foree

viTee,
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5 This Agreemem is subordinate 1o ANy emergeney use imvoked pursiemt g Section
2322, Florida Strtotes 130131, gs musy be amended or revised, or pursttant o any applivubly
HIBUTECRe Y manaaeaent program or plan,

H9 The Licemsaes me of the War Memorial Audilorinm s nol an aterest moreal

properis,

M bieensey shaft

Al Neep akd maintain public: records that ordinarily and necessavibe wonhif be
reguired iy she City i order 1o perform the sers jee

tbh Provide e public with aceess 1o public secords on e same termy amd
vonditions that the Ciy wonld provide the records and at a cost that does no| exvenyd the
virst prinadued in Chaptee 1, Flaridy Satotes 2003 as may by amended or revised, or
5 atberwvia provided by fay

fer Ensure that public reennds that are exempl or contidential amd excimpt from
pubbic records disclosure reguinements are not dischosed exeeplas authorizoed by fiw,

i Veet all regedrersens for retining public records and transfer, o no cost. 1 e
Cits. all public ecords in possession af the contractor apim terminion st s cenier
aned ehestron any dupficate pailic weconds theg e exemptor contilamiof o exemp from
riblic records diselosure requirements. Al records stored clectronically st e
privvided oo the City inoa fvmat g is conpaitible with the infornution tehnobug

sbstery ol the Uiy

Hi
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the | icensor and the Livensee fiereby excoute this License Agreciment

as Fofloss
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EXHIBIT |
WAR MEMORIAL AGITORN MEERVICE CHARCGES
Effective Ovtobert, 2016

LABOR CHARGES

Services reguired by the War Memorial Auditorium shal ho limited 10 those considered esseniial
arstan being benclicial © e Licensee durng s oceupuncs of the Awditorium.  Fhe
Management shali sappls these serviees whether it be Muamposser o masteriuls. Management
hall et o die contraetor and bill she Licensee for required time.  The matre of the ovent
determines the use alany persounel lisied below, An P Adminkstiration Fee wili be charged
ol pecsoined costs, A seryiee i of 0% will be addud woall Jabor churses, unkess icensee ix
GIN exetapt purswant oy Florida Strtules,

STAGE FECHNICIANS

A miainwm 6f two persons e ol evenls, inchading rehearsals. set-ups and arikes is eined.
Rehearsils min be seheduded i the diseretion althe Mansgenient Rehearsabs s considured to
et shtge anhy T e of e buitding, The presence of any audivnee will geieraie o clarge e an
ahditional performance. Al expenses invurred on behall of e Licenser's reheaesal are an
shliguiion of the [icensee, including manpower and all saertime, |icensor will order seeugin
when {icensor sonsiders i fecessary T the safely of occupiants and Pailding shusiing rehuarsids

RATE

Praductiva Covedimitor Hourly Rae LIRTIAITY
Prodaction Coordinator Hourl e,

satunday & Sunday L4200
Production Conrdinatar Hourly Rae.

Fegal Holidiy s, Christmas e amd Now Yoar's Ly S42.00
Production Copndinator Tonrly Raiy, Middnight

o 800 @ alter vight vomseoutive hour L4700
Profuciion Conndinagor Hourly Raie. fer

XL consectitis e hours 60,00
Sage Fechnicio: Hlourly Rake, per persm 3 2800
Stuge Lechnickmn Sworday & Sunda

Hourts Rare, pey pursaon LR SRt
Stage Techicn Houry Rage,

Pegd Holida s, Christoos Fve and New Yoar's ve S-42.00
St evhireion Howly Rae, per person. Midnigh

B 8108 o and aller eighs conseentive hours S 42
Stage Fechmician Hoorbs Rage. after

SUNTRE COMRCCTNE Dy ERGRLE
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ELECTRICIANS

=2 TIFPLIANY

Bhe s pas sales as above apply for thise persons fay iy dow portable pover distribution
and the siriking of the same system. During, trade shows. a mininum of one person will he on
dury o al} howrs when the Building is accupied by exhibitors or shaw ateendees. Munagement
will decide i1 the s reduires more than vne persen,

EVENT STAFF RATE
House Supervisor, per hour $ 2450
Bos Ohtice Cashier. per haur 750
Event Statt, per hour $17.50
Restroom Attendant. per e $17.50
Custodiad Services, per hour® S 2030
Hire Warch, per hour 58550
Segurits ofticer per hour, nnarmed 2

Parking Lt Stad? per hour S350
Park Ranger, per hour %3050
Podive, poy usur EL T}

s

ErNeryicos sl be gssessed b e Licerisee Ly above normed dutics or eeeeis cleuning after &

pertormanee, i1 becomes vecessry. beviiase of Livensee's ovcupane 1

THCKETING CHARGES

ivketinaster Internet and Phone <ales 40,
Creditcand sales ot WM Box Offiee 4%,
Pichuts prisited 10 WAEY 8o CHFice SO36 ekt

PACILITY FEFSPARKING RATES

Y minins 300 Facilite Fee wili be churged s tivkers and o admission fees o oy onis i
MOMVEAL Tlere il be no charge S purkang foe the everms for which o Faviliy Tee B ahareed,
i park g fow e ey enes Jor which admission o $ M e or i sadisission is charessd, wil)

PCLA A e e of St chicle,

Cits of Fort Laudendaic stalt will he cequired tor all trehet selfing and e admsiaion fues cotveted
A WALy
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EQUIPMENT CHARGES

FOUIPMENT RATE
C1Y pliyers Mini Dise. or Multi Dise vach pur day 44500
Chairs (portble), per dus S 1.0
Cheany Up Fee (as needed) H- 3000}
Prempsier Tee 1330.00
Paallet Lok per din 5 3000
Flectric 20 AMP per din £ 3040
Fesd In Kit § 300t
Fables. BN 5 $ uon
Fabstes (i Topsy o800
Rewnd bungaet tbles £ 2600
Wier Hookups per duas S
Wireless Mic per day % 54100
W per day $ 72300
Brogdband internet for hroadeusting S 200
Portulets  Regular b 3]
Portatets - A % S0.00
N5 13 Curtain Booths (Mack only) RIRLEAE]
inchudes shirted tibsle amed s chajrs
Pipe smd Drape. por lnear foot S 2Is
Portabde Foxtersor Beos OfTiey RRIERAEY
Outdonr Festival Front Fonce Uover S,
Stage Risers § 2500
Freneh Barricades %00
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Marketing Charges For Clients

Cost On average views SuqgestionsiNotes

Facebook Boosts 5100 8 000+ Purchase 2 Facebook Boosts
Twilter Freg 100+ Facebook/Constani Contant
tagged

Consiant Contact $100 1 0G0+ Dispiay ane week beiors avent
Marques/interior 5200 1.000+ a day Display weeks before the event
Mew Times Bannsrs 3125 €0 CTR / 28K impressions Rurs far 7 days before
the event

New Tines Re-Skin 3250 24 hour platform Purchase 2 re-siins

Runs for 1 day

Naw Times B-Blast 5130 15k Runs for 2 weeks-opl in gnly
iy Websits Free 1000+ viewed on Eventss Calendat
page

Cry's Channet 78 3100 1000 Viewesd by Comoast subrscnbers
WMA Grapnic Designer $150 Slide creatan charge. par side

¢ CTR=Chck Trrough Rate - Matonal average 15 60 Cheks per 100.000 inpresswons

Additionai Marketing Tools

Cost Notes

Gy Inserts - hMaters 5400 Maded to City of Forl Lauderdaie
ragitents
Bil Boarsds 3515k per 4 weeks - Oullron: Agverisng
Radio

Voicenvar 400 Cost g maks

30 sec ads 54740 30 spots

facebaok Past 33010

Shadar ad 8500 Lasts for one week on Radw 5 websile
Television
Deco Onve
Palm Cargs 5128 Sk
Posters 3304 F00
Press Release

Mianmi Heraid FREE

Sun Sentme FREE

tast Sder FREE

New Tuniss FREE
Tou Tube

Suggested Discount Sales

CHotipon
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EXHIBIT 2

Move in at 8:00 AM
Mova out by 11:59 PM

January 12, 2018
January 13-14, 2018

Move in at 8:00 AM
Move out by 11:59 PM

March 16, 2018
March 17-18, 2018

Move in at 8:00 AM
Move out by 11:58 PM

May 4, 2018
May 5-6, 2018

Move In at 8:00 AM
Move out by 11:59 PM

August 10, 2018
August 11-12, 2018

FLORIDA GUN SHOWS 2018

CONTRACTED EVENT DATES

AND PRICING

- FLORIDA GUN SHOWS
2018 CONTRACTED DATES

JANUARY 2018
January 12, 2018
January 14, 2018

Friday move in
Saturday & Sunday
Two Show Days @ $1,785.00 each

MARCH 2018
March 18, 2018
March 18, 2018

Friday move in
Saturday & Sunday
Two Show Days @ $1,785.00each

MAY 2018
May 4, 2018
May 8, 2018

Friday move in
Saturday & Sunday
Two Show Days @ $1,785.00each

AUGUST 2018
August 10, 2018
August 12, 2018

Friday move in

Saturday & Sunday
Two Show Days @ $1,785.each

Page ] of 2

$1.470.00

$3570.00
$5.040.00

$1,470.00

3,570.00

$5.040.00

$1.470.00

$3.570.00
$5.040.00

$1.470.00

$3,570.00
$5.040.00
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Move in at 8:00 AM
Move out by 11:59 PM

September 28, 2018
September 29-30

Move in at 8:00 AM
Move out by 11:59 PM

Novembaer 16, 2018
November 17-18, 2018

SEPTEMBER 2018
September 28, 2018
September 30, 2018

Friday move in
Saturday & Sunday
Two Show Days @ $1,785.00each

NOVEMBER 2018
November 16, 2018
November 18, 2018

Friday move in
Saturday & Sunday
Two Show Days @ $1.785 each

TOTAL ALL SHOWS

Page 2 of 2

$1.470.00

$3570.00
$5.040.00

$1.470.00

$3,570.00
$5.040.00

$30,240.00

- Page 29 of 52



EXHIBIT 2

REVISED FEBRUARY 3, 2018 to add June 30-July 1, 2018 date

Case 0:18-cv-62345-FAM Document 1 Entered on FLSD Docket 10/02/2018

Maove in at 8:00 AR
Move out by 11:58 PM

January 12, 2018
January 13-14. 2018

Move in at 8 00 AM
Move out by 11 59 PM

March 16 2018
March 17.18, 2018

ftove in at 3 00 AM
Move out by 11 59 PM

May 4, 2018
May 5-6, 2018

Move in at 8:00 AM
Move out by 11:59 P

June 29, 2018
Jure 30-Jduly 1, 2018

FLORIDA GUN SHOWS 2018

CONTRACTED EVENT DATES

AND PRICING

FLORIDA GUN SHOWS
2318 CONTRACTED DATES

JANUARY 2018
January 12, 2018
January 14, 2018

Friday movea in
Saturday & Sunday
Two Show Days &) 51.785 00 each

MARCH 2018
March 18, 2018
March 18, 2018

Friday move in
Saturday & Sunday
Two Show Days @ $1,785 00each

MAY 2018
May 4, 2018
May 6 2018

Frday move in
Saturday & Sunday
Two Shaw Days @ $1.785 00sach

SUNE 2018
Jurnie 28, 2018
July 1, 2018

Eriday move in

Saturday & Sunday
Two Show Days @ $1,785.00each

Page ol 3

3147000

$3870 00
$5.040 00

$1.470.00

2357000
$5.040 00

$1.47G 00

33.570.66G
$5.040 GG

$1.470.00

$3,570.00
$5.040.00

Page 30 of 52



Move in at 8:00 AM
Move out by 11:59 PM

Aygust 10,2018
August 11-12. 2018

Move in at 8.00 AM
Move cut by 11:58 PM

September 28 2018
September 7630

Move i af 8.00 AM
Move cut by 11 58 PM

Movember 18 2018
November 1718, 2018

AUGUST 2H8
August 10, 2018
August 12, 2018

Case 0:18-cv-62345-FAM Document 1 Entered on FLSD Docket 10/02/2018

Friday move in $1.470.80

Saturday & Sunday

Two Show Days @ $1 785 gach $3.570.00
$5.040 00

SEPTEMBER 2138

September 28, 2018

September 30. 2018

Friday move in F1.470.00

Saturday & Sunday

Two Show Days @ $¢.785.00sach 33,570 00
35 040 00

NOVEMBER 2018

November 16, 2018

Novernber 18 2018

Friday move in $1.470.00

Saturday & Sunday

Two Show Days @ $1.785 each $3.57000
35 040 00

TOTAL ALL SHOWS $30,240.00

REVISED FOr4l ALL SHOWS %35 286, 1)

~

Page 2 oi 3

Page 31 of 52
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Fort Lauderdale Commission Meeting
AUDIO FILE, EXCERPT OF

1

2

4 TRANSCRIPTION OF EXCERPT OF AUDIO FILE

8 In Re: City of Fort Lauderdale
Commission Meeting

Date: March 20, 2018
+ Total Run Time: 00:08:39
H Transcribed On: September 21, 2018
t2 Transcribed By: Kelly Roma
13 Court Reporter and
Notary Public,
14 State of Florida at Large
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

Orange Legal
800-275-7991
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Fort Lauderdale Commission Meeting
AUDIO FILE, EXCERPT OF

Page 35 of 52

1
2
3

(o2 T )

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

A PPEARANCE S:

DEAN J. TRANTALIS, MAYOR
HEATHER MORAITIS, COMMISSIONER
STEVEN GLASSMAN, COMMISSIONER
ROBERT L. MCKINZIE, COMMISSIONER
BEN SORENSEN, COMMISSIONER

ALATN k. BOILEAU, CITY ATTORNEY

Orange Legal
800-275-7991
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Fort Lauderdale Commission Meeting
AUDIO FILE, EXCERPT OF 3

1 This audio file was transcribed by

2 Kelly Roma, Notary Public, State of Florida at

3 Large, as follows:

4 (Excerpt from City of Fort Lauderdale

5 Commission Meeting of March 20, 2018.)

6 PROCEEDINGS

7 MAYOR TRANTALIS: Okay. Is there any further

8 business? I have a couple of things I want to talk

S about. We talked this afternoon about the -- about
10 the gun show and about the Wave and the Bahia Mar.
11 With regard -~

12 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Can you talk into the
13 mic, sir?
14 MAYOR TRANTALIS: I'm sorry. This afternoon
15 we talked -~ I'm sorry. This afterncon we talked
16 about the gun show, the Bahia Mar, and the Wave.

17 And I read -~ I don't know if any of you had the

18 opportunity to read the license agreement with the
19 gun show. But it seems to me that we have -- we
20 have a situation that the community has --
21 continues to speak out against having the gun show
22 at War Memorial.
23 I'm hopeful that this commission will put on
24 the record its opinion that we should not continue

25 this gun show after the license agreement expires,

Orange Legal
800-275-7991
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Fort Lauderdale Commission Meeting
AUDIO FILE, EXCERPT OF 4

1 and I'd like to hear from everybody so that we

2 can -~ we know where we are moving forward on this.
3 Commissioner Sorensen, do you have anything

4 to say about this? Go ahead, Commissioner

5 Glassman.

6 COMMISSIONER GLASSMAN: Yes. Thank you. I'm
7 wondering do we actually have to wait until the

8 license expires in November, or are we able to take
9 action prior to the license expiring in November?
10 MAYOR TRANTALIS: OQOkay. Before we answer
11 that question, I guess we're going to have to
12 appoint an interim city attorney right now. So --
13 we have to appoint an interim city attorney right
14 now. And do you have any recommendations,

15 Commissioner Sorensen?

16 COMMISSIONER SORENSON: One name that came to
17 mind was Alain Boileau —-- Boileau.

18 MAYOR TRANTALIS: Boileau.

19 COMMISSIONER SORENSON: Boileau.

20 MAYOR TRANTALIS: Is Alain here tonight? Oh,

21 there you are. Is this something that you can take

22 on, Alain?

23 MR. BOILEAU: I believe so.
24 MAYOR TRANTALIS: Okay. Do I hear a second?
25 COMMISSIONER SORENSEN: Second.

Orange Legal
800-275-7991
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Fort Lauderdale Commission Meeting

AUDIO FILE, EXCERPT OF 5
1 MAYOR TRANTALIS: Well, you made the -- you
2 made the --
3 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Rookie.
4 COMMISSIONER McKINZIE: First of all, I
5 think -~ first of all, before we make the decision

6 to move forward, I think we need to consider what
7 we're asking of whomever we decide to do this, what
8 time frame, you know, and put some other things in
9 place. I think tonight we can probably get any one
10 of our attorneys to opine on this. I think we've
11 gotten a legal opinion before. I think it was to
12 allow the lease to expire.
13 MAYOR TRANTALIS: Well, before we get there,
14 I just want -- I just want to make sure we -—-
15 because we're going to ask questions now of our
16 city attorney, and we need to have an interim city
17 attorney.
18 COMMISSIONER McKINZIE: Just for -- I wanted
19 to do this just for tonight.
20 MAYOR TRANTALIS: To appeoint an interim
21 attorney?
22 COMMISSIONER McKINZIE: Just for tonight and
23 we can decide -~
24 MAYOR TRANTALIS: Okay. I understand. All

25 right. So does anyone have any objections to Alain

Orange Legal
800-275-7991
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Fort Lauderdale Commission Meeting
AUDIO FILE, EXCERPT OF 6

1 Boileau being the interim city attorney -~

2 COMMISSIONER McKINZIE: Just for tonight.
3 MAYOR TRANTALIS: -- for tonight?
4 COMMISSIONER McKINZIE: And we figure it out

5 later on.

6 MAYOR TRANTALIS: Okay. Alain, would you

7 mind coming up here? Thank you.

g8 Alain, do you have any background on the

9 license agreement? Has this task been assigned to
10 you at any point in the past?
11 MR. BOILEAU: No, Mayor. I was not assigned
12 to this particular task.
13 MAYOR TRANTALIS: Was Lynn Sclomon involved
14 with this?
15 MR. BOILEAU: I believe so.

16 MAYOR TRANTALIS: Or Paul? Paul, were you at
17 all involved with the interpretation of the license
i8 agreement?

19 COMMISSTONER McKINZIE: 1It's a yes-or-no

20 guestion.

21 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: I was.

22 COMMISSIONER McKINZIE: All right. So I

23 guess what we want tc know tonight -- Mayor, 1if I
24 may?

25 MAYOR TRANTALIS: Yeah, go ahead.

Orange Legal
800-275-7991
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Fort Lauderdale Commission Meeting
AUDIO FILE, EXCERPT OF 7

1 COMMISSIONER McKINZIE: -- is to give us

2 clarification. Do we have the authority to break

3 our lease? And if we break our lease, what are the
4 ramifications of that, or should we just go the

5 distance of the lease and make a decision at that

6 time when it's time to renew the lease?

7 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: This is on the license

8 agreement for the War Memorial Gun Show?

9 MAYOR TRANTALIS: Yes.
10 COMMISSIONER McKINZIE: That is correct.
11 MAYOR TRANTALIS: He wanted to be -- he
12 wanted to clarify -- why don't you come up to the

13 podium. That way you have a microphone.

14 Lynn, were you at all involved in this?
15 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: I'm sorry?
16 COMMISSIONER McKINZIE: The license agreement

17 with War Memorial.

18 MAYOR TRANTALIS: The license agréement with
1¢% the -- with the gun show at War Memorial, have you
20 ever been asked for an opinion on that?

21 MR. BOILEAU: Mayor, I do know that in

22 looking at the gun issue, I had looked at the

23 agreement itself which terminates in November of
24 2018. It can be terminated for good cause. Of

25 course the question always comes as to what

Orange Legal
800-275-7991
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Fort Lauderdale Commission Meeting
AUDIO FILE, EXCERPT OF 8

1 constitutes good cause.

2 MAYOR TRANTALIS: I believe the actual

3 language also says if it threatens public safety.
4 MR. BOILEAU: Correct. I mean, there's --

5 that would have to be somewhat of a direct, but

6 that again is up to interpretation.

7 MAYOR TRANTALIS: Right. And but at the same
g8 time it expires of its own accord in November,

9 correct?
10 MR. BOILEAU: Correct, November 2018.
11 MAYOR TRANTALIS: Right. So =-- so according
12 to the interpretation of good cause, you know, if
13 we were to terminate it in advance of November,

14 that would be a litigious issue, would it not?

15 MR. BOILEAU: Yes, it would.
16 MAYOR TEANTALIS: So we could be sued based
17 on that. At the same time I think we can -- we can

i8 make the attempt to try to talk to the operator. I
19 have done this once before. I did meet with the

20 operator right after the Pulse nightclub killings,
21 and he was pretty adamant he wasn't ever going to
22 change his mind, and he was going to continue to
23 have the gun shows at War Memorial.

24 I do believe it was the opinion of the past

25 commission to continue the gun show and to continue

Orange Legal
800-275-7991
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Fort Lauderdate Commission Meeting
AUDIO FILE, EXCERPT OF

1
2

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

the license as-is, but now that we have

commission, I think we have

And -- and I think that -- I would like

that we could perhaps come to some sort

consensus agreement tonight
would not
after the term is expired.
Mr.

comments? Yes,

a new
a different philosophy.
to think
of

that moving forward, we

want to continue the license agreement

Do you have any

Commissioner?

COMMISSIONER GLASSMAN: Mayor, I would like
to know how many shows are left before -- between
now and November?

MAYOR TRANTALIS: I think six -- five or six.

COMMISSIONER GLASSMAN:

COMMISSIONER MORAITIS:
quarter?

COMMISSIONER McKINZIE:
like, two.
COMMISSIONER MORAITIS:
was --

MAYOR TRANTALIS: No.
COMMISSIONER McKINZIE:
MAYOR TRANTALIS:

me right now.

COMMISSIONER MORAITIS:

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:

There are that many?
Oh, it's once a

I thought it was,

Yeah. I thought it
There's one -=-

Do you know, Lee?

I don't have it in front of

It's once a quarter.

I want to say there's

Orange Legal
800-275-7991
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Fort Lauderdale Commission Meeting
AUDIO FILE, EXCERPT OF 10

1 four. I'm just looking to Phil -~

2 MAYOR TRANTALIS: Is that the number?

3 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: -- to Phil to verify.
4 COMMISSIONER MORAITIS: That's a lot.

5 COMMISSIONER McKINZIE: Can we do this, since

6 this is our manager, have him go back and bring us
7 the necessary information? We can have an
8 inteiligent discussion, which we all know what our
9 hearts want and what we're trying to do to protect
10 our community and our kids based on the recent
11 activity in Coral Springs. I think we all are
12 very, very concerned about a gun show being in our
13 park, and we just want to make sure that legally we
14 can do it, and we're doing the right things not to
15 cause any further repercussions to us financially,
16 legally, and those type things. So we could do it
17 right. I mean, I think we made a mistake on the
18 other one, but we had a vote and that's how things
19 turned out. Let's get this one right.
20 COMMISSIONER GLASSMAN: Good idea, and it
21 will be properly noticed. The public will have a
22 chance to weigh in. It will be transparent. I
23 agree with that, and we'll have more facts. And we
24 can certainly wait for two more weeks.

25 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Okay. And we'll have

Orange Legal
800-275-7991
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Fort Lauderdale Commission Meeting
AUDIO FILE, EXCERPT OF 41

1 an -—- we'll have an opportunity to study the

2 agreement and bring back to you exactly what it

3 says.

4 COMMISSIONER McKINZIE: And just remember,

5 you have staff at your beck and call. Anything you

6 want an answer on, you don't have to get it

7 tonight. You can always go to them and get

8 anything you want, all the facts to make these

9 decisions, and I think it will just make us more

10 transparent and make us more cohesive in terms of
11 what we're trying to do. I think we all think
12 alike. We have the best interest of the city at
13 heart, but sometimes we don't always do it the

14 right way.

15 MAYOR TRANTALIS: So as you're studying this,
16 Paul and Alain and whoever else in your department
17 participated in this analysis of the license
18 agreement, I guess the sense of the commission is
19 how —-- what opportunity do we have to terminate
20 this license agreement so that we no longer have to
21 host this at War Memorial Auditorium. Thank you.
22 (Excerpt ended.)
23
24
25

Orange Legal
800-275-7991
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Fort Lauderdale Commission Meeting
AUDIO FILE, EXCERPT OF 12

1 CERTIFICATE OF TRANSCRIPTION
2

3 STATE OF FLORIDA:
COUNTY OF LAKE:

5 I, Kelly Roma, certify that I was authorized to and
did transcribe the audio that was provided to me and that

6 the foregoing Pages 3 through 11, inclusive, are a true
and complete record of said audio to the best of my

7 ability.

8 I further certify that I am not a relative or
employee of any of the parties, nor am I a relative or
9 counsel connected with the parties' attorneys or counsel
connected with the action, nor am I financially
10 interested in the outcome of the action.

11 DATED this 24th day of September, 2018.
12

. Relly Rona
14 Kelly Roma

Court Reporter
15 Notary Public State Of Florida

le6
17
18
13
20
21
22
23
24

25

Orange Legal
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Fort Lauderdale Commission Meeting

AUDIO FILE, EXCERPT OF index; 20..nightciub

20 3:5
2018 3:57:248:10

A

accord 8:8

action 4.9

activity 10:11
actual 8:2
adamant 8:21
advance 8:13
afternoon 3:9,14,15
agree 10:23

agreement 3:18,25
6:5,18 7:8,16,18,23
9:5611:2,18,20

ahead 4:46:25

Alain 4:17,20,22
5:256:6,811:16

alike 11:12
analysis 11:17

appoint 4:12,13
5:20

as-is 9:1
assigned 6:9,11
attempt 8:18

attorney 4:12,13
5:16,17,21 6:1

attorneys 5:10
audio 3:1
Aunditorium 11:21
authority 7.2

back 10:611:2
background 6:8
Bahia 3:10,16

based 8:16 10:10
beck 11:5

Boilean 4:17,18,19,
23 6:1,11,157:21
8:4,10,15

break 7:2,3
bring 10:611:2

business 3:8

C

call 11:5
chance 10:22
change 8:22

city 3:44:12,13 5:16
6:111:12

clarification 7:2
clarify 7:12
cohesive 11:10
comments 9:8

commission 3:5,23
8:259:211:18

Commissioner 4:3,
4,6,15,16,19,25 5.4,
18,22 6:2,4,19,22
7:1,10,16 9:8.9.13,
14,16,18,21,24 10:4,
520114

community 3:20
10:10

concerned 10:12
comsensus 9:5
constitutes 8:1

continue 3:24 8:22,
259:6

continues 3:21
Coral 10:11

correct 7:108:4.9,
10

couple 3:8

D

decide 5:7,23
decision 5:57:5
decisions 11:9
department 11:16
direct 8:5
discussion 10:8

distance 7:5

E

ended 11:22
excerpt 3:4 11:22
expire 5:12
expired 9:7
expires 3:254:8 88

expiring 4:9

F

facts 10:23 11:8
figure 6:4

file 3:1
financially 10:15
Florida 3:2

Fort 3:4

forward 4:25:69:5
frame 5:8

front 9:22

G

give 7.1

Glassman 4:5,6 9:9,
1310:20

good 7:24 8:1,12
10:20

guess 4:11 6:23
11:18

gun 3:10,16,19,21,25
7:8,19,22 8:23,25
10:12

H

hear 4:1,24
heart 11:13
hearts 10:9
hopefutl 3:23
host 11:21

idea 10:20
information 10:7
inteligent 10:8
interest 11:12

interim 4:12,13
5:16,20 6:1

interpretation 6:17
8:6,12

involved 6:13,17
7:.14

issue 7:22 8:14

K-

Kelly 3:2
kids 10:10
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L

Ianguage 8:3
Large 3:3
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lease 5:127:3,5,6
Lee 9:21

left 9:10

legal 5:11
legally 10:13,16

license 3:18.254:8,9
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611:17,20

litigious 8:14
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MORAITIS %:14,
18,24 10:4

move 5:6

moving 4:29:5

N

nightclub 8:20

Orange Legal
B00-275-7991
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Index: Notary..yes-or-no

Notary 3:2
noticed 10:21

November 4:89
7:23 8:8,10,13 9:11

number 10:2

0

objections 5:25
operator 8:18,20
opine 5:10

opinion 3:24 5:11
7:20 8:24

opportenity 3:18
11:1,19

|

park 10:13
participated 11:17
past 6:10 8:24
Paul 6:16 11:16
Phil 10:1,3
philosophy 9:2
place 5:9
podium 7:13
point 6:10
pretty 8:21
prior 4:9

PROCEEDINGS
3:6

properly 10:21
protect 10:9
public 3:2 8:3 10:21
Pulse 8:20

put 3:23 5:8

Q

quarter 9:15,24
question 4:11 6:20

7:25

questions 5:15

R

ramifications 7:4
read 3:17,18
recent 10:10

recommendations
4:14

record 3:24
regard 3:11
remember 11:4
renew 7:6

repercussions
10:15

Roma 3:2
Rookie 5:3

S

safety 8:3
sense 11:18

show 3:10,16,19,21,
25 7:8,19 8:25 10:12

shows 8:239:10
sir 3:13
situation 3:20
Solomon 6:13
Sorensen 4:3,15

SORENSON 4:16,
19

sort 9:4
speak 3:21

SPEAKER 3:12 5:3
6:21 7.7,159:25
10:3,25

Springs 10:11
staff 11:5
State 32

study 11:1
studying 11:15
sued 8:16

Sérensen 4:25

T

talk 3:8,12 8:18
talked 3:9,15
task 6:9,12
term 9:7

terminate 3:13
11:19

terminated 7:24
terminates 7:23
ferms 11:10

things 3:8 5:8 10:14,
16,18

thought 9:16,18
threatens &:3
time 5:8 7:6 8:8,17

tonight 420 5:9,19,
226:23,239:511:7

transcribed 3:1

transparent 10:22
11:10

TRANTALIS 3.7,
14 4:10,18,20,24
5:1,13,20,24 63,6,
13,16,25 7.9,11,18
8:2,7,11,16 9:12,20,
2210:211:15

turned 10:19
type 10:16

U

understand 5:24

UNIDENTIFIED
312536217715
9:25 10:3,25

v

verify 10:3
vote 10:18

w

wait 4:7 10:24
wanted 5:18 7:11,12

War 3:227:8,17,19
8:23 11:21

Wave 3:10,16
weeks 10:24
weigh 10:22
whomever 5:7

wondering 4:7

Y

yes-or-no 6:19

Orange Legal
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~ i\ CITY OF Exfred

FORT LAUDERDALE \|”|r

August 31, 2018

Mr. Khaled Akkawi

Florida Gun Shows, Inc.

1349 S. Orange Blossom Trail
Apopka, FL 32703

Re: License Agreement, War Memorial Auditorium
Florida Gun Shows, Inc. {“Licensee”)

Dear Mr. Akkawi:

We are in receipt of your correspondence, dated August 14, 2018, requesting a 2019
License Agreement for Florida Gun Shows, Inc. at War Memorial Auditorium. At this
time, we will not be providing Florida Gun Shows, Inc. any proposed License Agreement
for future shows beyond November 2018. With regards to what we consider and
interpret as your public records request, there are no responsive documents.

Sihcer

N —

Lee R\ Felliman, ICMA-CM
City Manager

C: Alain E. Boileau, Interim City Attorney
Christopher J. Lagerbloom, Assistant City Manager
Phil Thornburg, Parks & Recreation Director
Carl Williams, Parks & Recreation Deputy Director
Orlando J. Castellano, Auditorium Manager

Office of the City Manager
100 North Andrews Avenue, Fort Lauderdale, Florida 33301
Telephone {954) 828-5013, Fax (954) 828-55%9

www.fortlauderdale.gov

¥
Egqual Opportunity Emplayer Printed Da Recycled Papar, ﬁ;
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JS44 (Rev.06/17) FLSD Revised 06/01/2017 CIVIL COVER SHEET

The JS 44 civil cover sheet and the information contained herein neither replace nor sﬂ:plcmcm the filing and service of pleadings or other pagcrs as required by law, cxcept as
provided by local rules of court. This form, approved by the Judicial Conference of the United States in September 1974, is required for the use of the Clerk of Court for the purposc
of initiating the civil docket sheet. (SEE INSTRUCTIONS ON NEXT PAGE OF THIS FORM,) NOTICE: Attorneys MUST Indicate All Re-filed Cases Below.

I. (a) PLAINTIFFS FLOR!DA GUN S_HOWS, INC., DEFENDANTS CITY QF FORT .LAFJDERDALE 5
A Florida corporation, f/k/a SHOOT A Florida Municipality,
STRAIGHT GUN SHOWS, INC.
(b) County of Residence of First Listed Plaintiff Orange County, Florida County of Residence of First Listed Defendant
(EXCEPT IN U.S. PLAINTIFF CASES) (IN U.S. PLAINTIFF CASES ONLY)
NOTE: IN LAND CONDEMNATION CASES, USE THE LOCATION OF

THE TRACT OF LAND INVOLVED,
w Attorneys (Firm Name, Address, and Telephone Number) Attorneys (If Known)
oodbury, Santiago & Correoso, Ig.A.

9100 S. Dadeland Blvd., Suite 1702
Miami, Florida 33156 Telephone: (305) 670-9580

(d) Check County Where Action Arosc: L[] MIAMI-DADE [ MONROE @ BROWARD [J PALM BEACH [ MARTIN CJST.LUCIE [J INDIAN RIVER L] OKEECHOBEE [ HIGHLANDS

II. BASIS OF JUR]SDICTION (Place an "X in One Box Only) III. CITIZENSHIP OF PRINCIPAL PARTIES (Place an “X" in One Box for Plaintiff)
(For Diversity Cases Only) and One Box for Defendant)
O ! U.S. Government 13 Federal Question PTF DEF PTF DEF
Plaintiff (U.S. Government Not a FParty) Citizen of This State 1 E I Incorporated or Principal Place 4 A4
of Business In This State
[ 2 U.S. Government 4 Diversity Citizen of Another State 02 [ 2 Incorporated and Principal Place Oos 0Os
Defendant (Indicate Citizenship of Parties in Item 111) of Business In Another State
Citizen or Subject of a O3 [O 3 ForeignNation O6 O¢6
Foreign Country
IV. NATURE OF SUIT (Place an "X" in One Box Only) Click here for: Nature of Suit Code Descriptions
CONTRACT TORTS FORFEITURE/PENALTY BANKRUPTCY OTHER STATUTES
[ 110 Insurance PERSONAL INJURY PERSONAL INJURY [0 625 Drug Related Seizure [0 422 Appeal 28 USC 158 [ 375 False Claims Act
g pp
[ 120 Marine 310 Airplane [ 365 Personal Injury - of Property 21 USC 881 [ 423 Withdrawal ] 376 Qui Tam (31 USC
[ 130 Miller Act [ 315 Airplane Product Product Liability [ 690 Other 28 USC 157 3729 (a))
[ 140 Negotiable Instrument Liability [ 367 Health Care/ [ 400 State Reapportionment
[ 150 Recovery of Overpayment ] 320 Assault, Libel & Pharmaceutical PROPERTY RIGHTS [ 410 Antitrust
& Enforcement of Judgment Slander Personal Injury [0 820 Copyrights [ 430 Banks and Banking
151 Medicare Act [ 330 Federal Employers' Product Liability [ 830 Patent ) [ 450 Commerce
[ 152 Recovery of Defaulted Liability ] 368 Asbestos Personal Els\ijesw[‘ [n)r::'; A&:?’ﬁ:r;}’é‘::ed [ 460 Deportation
Student Loans [ 340 Marine Injury Product [ 840 Trademark [0 470 Racketeer Influenced and
(Excl. Veterans) [ 345 Marine Product Liability LABOR SOCIAL SECURITY Corrupt Organizations
[ 153 Recovery of Overpayment Liability PERSONAL PROPERTY [] 710 Fair Labor Standards 1861 HIA (1395f) [0 480 Consumer Credit
of Veteran's Benefits [ 350 Mator Vehicle [ 370 Other Fraud Act 1862 Black Lung (923) 1 490 Cable/Sat TV
[ 160 Stockholders” Suits [ 355 Motor Vehicle O 371 Truth in Lending ] 720 Labor/Mgmt. Relations [ 863 DIWC/DIWW (405(g)) [ 850 Securities/Commaodities/
[ 190 Other Contract Product Liability [ 380 Other Personal O 740 Railway Labor Act 1864 SSID Title XVI Exchange
[0 195 Contract Product Liability [ 360 Other Personal Property Damage O 751 Family and Medical [ 865 RSI (405(z)) [ 890 Other Statutory Actions
[ 196 Franchise Injury [J 385 Property Damage Leave Act O 89! Agricultural Acts
[ 362 Personal Injury - Product Liability [ 790 Other Labor Litigation O 893 Environmental Matters
Med. Malpractice [ 791 Empl. Ret. Inc. [ 895 Freedom of Information
REAL PROPERTY CIVIL RIGHTS PRISONER PETITIONS Security Act FEDERAL TAX SUITS Act
O 210 Land Condemnation 440 Other Civil Rights Habeas Corpus: 1870 Taxes (U.S. Plaintiff [J 896 Arbitration
[ 220 Foreclosure [J 441 Voting [ 463 Alien Detainee or Defendant) 1 599 Administrative Procedure
[ 230 Rent Lease & Ejectment [ 442 Emp].uymen( O gégmnMc';"uns lg-Vacate O %;‘SIC _]IEDSQ Thirdi® Basty .26 Act/Review or Appeal of
[ 240 Torts to Land O f{géiﬁ;ﬂﬂﬂinm Other: Agency Dc‘cisi‘un .
[ 245 Tort Product Liability [ 445 Amer. w/Disabilities - [] 530 General IMMIGRATION EIREY Constiutionality ol Siate
[ 290 All Other Real Property Employment [ 535 Death Penalty [0 462 Naturalization Application
[0 446 Amer. w/Disabilities - [ 540 Mandamus & Other ] 465 Other Immigration
Other [ 550 Civil Rights Actions
[ 448 Education [J 555 Prison Condition

560 Civil Detainee -
[ Conditions of

Confinement
V. ORIGIN (Place an "X in One Box Only) e O ¢ Mkl
@] | Original [0 2 Removed [ 3 Re-filed [ 4 Reinstated [] 5 "3“]5 er&'g trom Vit ulidistrict 07 Appealto O % Muhidistrict R ded f
Proceeding (ﬁ:ngSmle gs':i‘:‘:;l UR::opened ?s[;f;n:lf?f)r'} istrict T:_tﬂlr%:}gll ll?isll‘i;:; .lu_dge[ L“Ul ::‘EEZ?I e A;?:I?at': C;‘:E
e
VI. RELATED/ (Scc instructions): a) Re-filed Case OYES € NO b) Related Cases OYES 0O NO
RE-FILED CASE(S) JUDGE: DOCKET NUMBER:
Citc th Civil Statute under whi )i j [v! f.Lause (Do not cite jurisdi / unless diversity):
VIL. CAUSE OF ACTION 15t'5nd LIJI’-tgt'h men men‘ti, Vﬁ‘&fﬂ){‘hﬁﬁb‘ﬁﬂaﬁfﬂk m“f'ﬁf’fﬁlg 'ﬁ?ﬁ.ﬁi
LENGTH OF TRIAL via °"™ days cstimated (for both sides to try entirc casc)
VIII. REQUESTED IN CHECK IF THIS IS A CLASS ACTION ; ; ; o
COMPLAINT: [m] UNDER FR.C.P. 23 DEMAND § CHECK YES only if demanded in complaint:
JURY DEMAND: OvYes ¥INo

ABOVE INFORMATION IS TRUE & CORRECT TO THE BEST OF MY KNOWLEDGE
DATE yorober 2. 2018 SIGNATURE OF ATTORNEY OF RECORD

FOR OFFICE USE ONLY ﬂ
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AQ 440 (Rev, 06/12) Summons in a Civil Action

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

for the

FLORIDA GUN SHOWS, INC.,
A Florida corporation, t/k/a SHOOT
STRAIGHT GUN SHOWS, INC.

Plaintifits)
V.

CITY OF FORT LAUDERDALE ,
A Florida Municipality,

Civil Action No.

[ S A L N e R

Defendam(s)
SUMMONS IN A CIVIL ACTION

To: (Defendant’s name and address)
City of Fort Lauderdale, FL
clo MAYOR DEAN J. TRANTALIS
City Hall, 8th Floor
100 North Andrews Avenue
Fort Lauderdale, FL 33301

A lawsuit has been filed against you.

Within 21 days after service of this summons on you (not counting the day you received it) — or 60 days if you
are the United States or a United States agency, or an officer or employee of the United States described in Fed. R. Civ.
P. 12 (a)(2) or (3) — you must serve on the plaintiff an answer to the attached complaint or a motion under Rule 12 of
the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure. The answer or motion must be served on the plaintiff or plaintiff’s attorney,
whose name and address are:

If you fail to respond, judgment by default will be entered against you for the relief demanded in the complaint,
You also must file your answer or motion with the court.

CLERK OF COURT

Date:

Signature of Clerk or Deputy Clerk
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AD 449 (Rev. 06/82) Summons in a Civil Action (Page 2}

Civil Action No.

PROOF OF SERVICE
(This section should not be filed with the court unless required by Fed. R. Civ. P. 4 (1))

This summons for frame of individual and title, if any;

was received by me on (date)

(3 T personally served the summons on the individual at (place)

On {date) ;or

(3 I left the surnmons at the individual’s residence or usual place of abode with (rame)

, @ person of suitable age and discretion who resides there,

on (date) , and mailed a copy to the individual’s last known address; or

1 1 served the summons on (hame of individual) , who is

designated by law to accept service of process on behalf of (name of organization)

On (date} ;or
3 I returned the summons unexecuted because sor
O Other (specifi):
My fees are $ for travel and $ for services, for a total of § 0.00

I declare under penalty of perjury that this information is true.

Date:

Server’s signature

Printed name and title

Server's address

Additional information regarding attempted service, etc:



